SeeBeyond[™] eBusiness Integration Suite

e*Way Intelligent Adapter for Remedy EIE User's Guide

Release 4.5.2



SeeBeyond Proprietary and Confidential

The information contained in this document is subject to change and is updated periodically to reflect changes to the applicable software. Although every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of this document, SeeBeyond Technology Corporation (SeeBeyond) assumes no responsibility for any errors that may appear herein. The software described in this document is furnished under a License Agreement and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of such License Agreement. Printing, copying, or reproducing this document in any fashion is prohibited except in accordance with the License Agreement. The contents of this document are designated as being confidential and proprietary; are considered to be trade secrets of SeeBeyond; and may be used only in accordance with the License Agreement, as protected and enforceable by law. SeeBeyond assumes no responsibility for the use or reliability of its software on platforms that are not supported by SeeBeyond.

e*Gate, e*Insight, e*Way, e*Xchange, e*Xpressway, eBI, iBridge, Intelligent Bridge, IQ, SeeBeyond, and the SeeBeyond logo are trademarks and service marks of SeeBeyond Technology Corporation. All other brands or product names are trademarks of their respective companies.

© 1999–2002 by SeeBeyond Technology Corporation. All Rights Reserved. This work is protected as an unpublished work under the copyright laws.

This work is confidential and proprietary information of SeeBeyond and must be maintained in strict confidence. Version 20021030081156.

Contents

Chapter 1	
Introduction	5
Overview Intended Reader Components	5 7 8
Supported Operating Systems	8
System Requirements	8
External System Requirements	8
Chapter 2	
Installation	9
Installing the Remedy e*Way from the CD	9
Pre-Installation Installation Procedure	9
Installation Procedure	

Files/Directories Created by the Installation	10
Installing the Remedy e*Way Client Files	11
Copying the Remedy e*Way Client Files	11
Registering stc_common.dll and stc_ewipmpcInt.dll	11
Registering stcadpr.dll	12

Chapter 3

Configuration	13
Adding the Remedy e*Way in the Enterprise Manager	13
e*Way Configuration Parameters	14
General Settings	14
Request Reply IP Port	14
Push IP Port	14
Rollback if no Clients on Push Port	15
Wait for IQ Ack	15
Configuring the Remedy EIE Application	15
Setting up a Remedy EIE:VendorConfiguration Form	15

Chapter 4

Implementation	24
Installing the Remedy Sample Schema	24
Importing the Sample Schema	24
Running the Sample Schema	24
Order of Application Startup and Shutdown	25
About the Remedy Sample Schema	25
Sample Schema Data Flow Description	25
About the Remedy Sample Schema Sample Schema Data Flow Description	2:

Index

27

Chapter 1

Introduction

The e*Way Intelligent Adapter for Remedy EIE (Remedy e*Way) provides a way to communicate the Remedy AR system by using Remedy's Enterprise Integration Engine (EIE). Remedy e*Way client software running on the EIE host machine allows the Remedy e*Way running on an e*Gate Participating host to send and receive Events with the e*Gate system.

1.1 **Overview**

The Remedy EIE has two major phases:

- Initialization: The EIE engine reads three forms:
 - EIE:Startup
 - EIE:DataExchange
 - EIE:DataMapping

A data exchange session is set up. Each data exchange has threads specific to that exchange to enable simultaneous running of multiple exchanges in both directions (from/to Remedy). EIE loads SeeBeyond's Remedy-client component of the e*Way (**stcadpr.dll**) as defined in the EIE:DataExchange forms. The data exchange rules are parsed and validated. The connection to the Remedy e*Way is established. The EIE data exchange session follows the schedule to proceed with the data exchange.

Processing: Before the actual exchange begins, the session is updated with any changes to the data exchange definition. The Remedy-client component of the e*Way establishes a socket connection to the Remedy e*Way. The connection opens when the data exchange session is initialized and does not close unless terminated. In this way, no further connection attempts are performed in the processing phase. This allows the Remedy e*Way to process multiple concurrent connections to the same port, as an open connection does not interfere with other data exchange sessions connected to the same port.

To pass data from the Remedy Action Request System (AR), the session will generate a list of key value pairs from form data and pass them to the Remedy-client component as C++ business objects. You can select the data to be sent from EIE to e*Gate by defining a query in the EIE:DataMapping form. The Remedy-client component generates blob data in XML format. The blob data is sent to the Remedy e*Way. Within e*Gate, the logic must be defined to parse the blob data into a complete structure. In

addition to the parsing logic, the logic required to update the target backend system (create, delete or update) must be included.

To pass data from e*Gate into the AR system, the Remedy e*Way passes data to the Remedy e*Way client component (**stcadpr.dll**) which generates a key list. The Remedy e*Way sends such data as an unstructured XML string, containing the tags for the client software to parse. The client then parses the data and constructs the key list(s). Various actions are then taken by EIE depending on the values selected in "Update Type" field in the **EIE:DataExchange** form.

- **New only**—The keys that correspond to a new record are passed down from the EIE engine to the Remedy client component. The client populates values from the e*Gate data and returns the key-value pair to the EIE engine. The EIE engine then creates all the new rows within the AR forms.
- **Changed only**—The updated values are passed from the Remedy-client component to EIE. EIE overwrites the existing AR row with values received from the Remedy-client component. The RequestID associated with the row and create data remain the same, while the modification date changes.
- **New and changed**—The Remedy-client component will return values for both new and existing keys. EIE creates the new AR record or updates the existing record.
- Always create new—If the row doesn't exist in AR, a new row is created. If the row exists in AR, a duplicate row is created. Many rows may have the same key, but different values or different internal AR signatures (RequestID, timestamps etc.).

The diagram in Figure 1 provides an overview of the Remedy e*Way implementation.



Figure 1 Overview of the Remedy e*Way Implementation

1.1.1. Intended Reader

The reader of this guide is presumed to be a developer or system administrator with responsibility for maintaining the e*Gate system; to have expert-level knowledge of Windows and UNIX operations and administration; to be thoroughly familiar with Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine and Remedy Action Request System; and to be thoroughly familiar with Windows-style GUI operations.

1.1.2. Components

The Remedy e*Way includes the following:

- Remedy e*Way client software: stcadpr.dll
- Participating Host components: a multiplexing e*Way and supporting library files. A complete list of installed files appears in Table 1 on page 11.
- Configuration files, which the e*Way Editor uses to define configuration parameters

1.2 Supported Operating Systems

The Remedy e*Way is available on the following operating systems:

- Windows 2000, Windows 2000 SP1, and Windows 2000 SP2
- Windows NT 4.0 SP6a

1.3 System Requirements

To use the Remedy e*Way, you need the following:

- An e*Gate Participating Host, version 4.5.1 or later.
- A TCP/IP network connection.
- Additional disk space for e*Way executable, configuration, library, and script files. The disk space is required on both the Participating and the Registry Host. Additional disk space is required to process and queue the data that this e*Way processes; the amount necessary varies based on the type and size of the data being processed, and any external applications performing the processing.

1.4 External System Requirements

To enable the e*Way to communicate properly with the Remedy Action Request System, the following are required:

Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine running on Windows 2000 or Windows NT.

Chapter 2

Installation

This chapter covers the requirements for installing the Remedy e*Way. Installation is essentially the process of copying files to their correct locations and properly registering them with the operating system. There are two parts to the installation. The first uses the e*Gate setup program to copy the necessary files from the e*Gate installation CD to the Participating Host on which the e*Way will run. The second uses a manual process to copy and register the Remedy e*Way client-side files on the host running the Remedy EIE application.

The e*Way's Participating Host and the Remedy EIE host can be, but do not have to be, the same machine. If they are the same machine, this machine must use the Windows operating system, since the Remedy e*Way client files only run under Windows NT/ 2000.

After the Remedy e*Way files have been copied to the correct locations, the e*Way itself must be added to the e*Gate schema under which it will run, and then both the Remedy e*Way and the Remedy EIE application must be properly configured.

2.1 Installing the Remedy e*Way from the CD

The Remedy e*Way must be installed on an e*Gate Participating Host machine.

2.1.1. Pre-installation

- Exit all programs before running the setup program, including any anti-virus applications.
- You do not require root privileges to install this e*Way. Log in under the user name that you wish to own the e*Way files. Be sure that this user has sufficient privilege to create files in the e*Gate directory tree.

2.1.2. Installation Procedure

If you are installing this e*Way as part of a complete e*Gate installation, please follow the instructions in the *e***Gate Integrator Installation Guide*. The Remedy e*Way is installed as an "Add-on" component in the fourth phase of the installation.

If you are adding the Remedy e*Way to an existing e*Gate installation, follow the instructions below.

9



To install the Remedy e*Way Components on a Windows NT/2000 system:

- 1 Log in as an Administrator on the workstation on which you want to install the e*Way.
- 2 Close any open applications.
- 3 Launch the setup application on the e*Gate installation CD-ROM.
- 4 Follow the online prompts in the InstallShield[®] Wizard. When the Select Components dialog box appears, clear all the check boxes except Add-ons. Click Next as necessary to proceed through the setup application.
- 5 When the **User Information** dialog box appears, type your name and company name.
- 6 When the **Choose Destination Location** window appears, **do not** change the **Default Destination** folder unless you are directed to do so by SeeBeyond support personnel; simply click **Next** to continue.
- 7 Either select the e*Way line to install all e*Ways on the CD, or select the e*Way line, and then click the "Change" button to edit which e*Ways are installed from the provided CD.
- 8 When the **Select Components** dialog box appears, check **Remedy e*Way**.
- 9 When the **Registry Hostname** window appears, enter the name of the machine on which the Registry files are installed.
- 10 Complete the fields in the Administrator Account Information dialog box.
- *Note: e***Gate usernames and passwords are case-sensitive.*
 - 11 When the **Select platforms to support for add-on** window appears, select **Windows NT service pack 4 and higher** if it is not already selected.
 - 12 Follow the on-screen prompts to complete the installation.

After the installation is complete, reboot the computer and launch the Enterprise Manager.

2.1.3. Files/Directories Created by the Installation

The Remedy e*Way installation process will install the following files within the e*Gate directory tree. The files located in Table 1 will be installed within the "egate\client" tree. The files located in Table 2 need to be copied from the Participating Host system onto the Remedy EIE Server machine. These files will be committed to the "default" schema on the Registry Host.

e*Gate Directory	File(s)
bin\	stcewipmp.exe stcadpr.dll stc_common.dll stc_ewipmpcInt.dll
\configs\stcewipmp\	stcewipmp.def

Table 1	Participating Host System files installed
iuoie i	i al delpading i lost system mes mistanea

2.2 Installing the Remedy e*Way Client Files

Table 2 lists the files that must be installed on the host running the Remedy EIE application. The Remedy EIE host does not need to be the same as the e*Way's Registry Host, but it does need to be running Windows NT/2000. Installation of these files has two parts. First the files are copied to an appropriate location on the Remedy EIE machine, then the files must be registered with the operating system.

Table 2	Remedy	EIE	Server	files
Table 2	Remeay		JUIVUI	mes

EIE Server Directory	File(s)
user defined	stcadpr.dll stc_common.dll stc_ewipmpcInt.dll

2.2.1. Copying the Remedy e*Way Client Files

The files **stcadpr.dll**, **stc_common.dll**, and **stc_ewipmpcInt.dll** install automatically on the Remedy e*Way's Participating Host as part of installing the Remedy e*Way from the e*Gate CD. These files must now be copied to the system where the Remedy EIE application is located.

- Use operating system commands to copy all three files from the **egate****client****bin** folder into any directory on the EIE machine, as long as that directory is within the PATH or the calling application's current working directory.
- *Note:* You should make a notation of the full path location to which the *stcadpr.dll* is copied for later reference.

2.2.2. Registering stc_common.dll and stc_ewipmpcInt.dll

After the files have been copied, they must be registered in the Windows NT/2000 registry on the Remedy EIE host system using the **regsvr32** command-line utility.

• Type the following at the command prompt on the EIE machine:

```
regsvr32 your_path_location\file_name
where
```

your_path_location is the location of the file to be registered and

file_name is the name of the file to be registered.

A separate dialog box opens to confirm that the command was performed successfully; no messages appear in the command window. For more information about this utility, type **regsvr32** with no arguments at the Windows command prompt.

Note: The suggested order for registering these files is stc_common.dll, stc_ewipmpclnt.dll and then any additional files as needed.

2.2.3. Registering stcadpr.dll

The **stcadpr.dll** file is registered using the following procedure.

- 1 Launch the Windows Registry editor (see Figure 2).
- 2 Navigate to the following location:

3 Follow the instructions in the *Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine Administrator's Guide* to create the appropriate directory in the Windows Registry, naming it "STC".

You will also need to enter "STC" in the "Vendor Application Name" fields in various EIE forms.



Figure 2 Registry Editor

Configuration

This chapter describes how to add a Remedy e*Way to the e*Gate schema under which it will run. In addition, to enable the Remedy EIE application to communicate with the Remedy e*Way, you must also do the following:

- Set the Remedy e*Way to use the correct TCP/IP port in the e*Way's configuration file. See "**Request Reply IP Port**" on page 14.
- Configure the Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine as directed (see "Configuring the Remedy EIE Application" on page 15.

3.1 Adding the Remedy e*Way in the Enterprise Manager

Important

From the perspective of the e*Gate GUIs, the Remedy e*Way is not a system of components distributed between the Remedy EIE Server and a Participating Host, but a single component that runs an executable file (the multiplexer **stcewipmp.exe**). When this manual discusses procedures within the context of any e*Gate GUI, the term "e*Way" refers only to the Participating Host component of the Remedy e*Way system.

To configure the Participating Host components:

- 1 If you have not already done so, launch the Enterprise Manager.
- 2 Using the Component editor, create a new e*Way.
- 3 Display the new e*Way's properties.
- 4 On the General tab, under **Executable File**, click **Find**.
- 5 Select the file **stcewipmp.exe**.
- 6 Click OK to close the properties sheet, or continue to configure the e*Way. Configuration parameters as discussed in Installation on page 9. The setup and requirements of schemas required to use this e*Way are discussed in Implementation on page 24.
- 7 If the message received from Remedy is a response to an earlier request, then log the response.
- *Note:* Once you have installed and configured this e*Way, you must incorporate it into a schema by defining and associating the appropriate Collaborations, Collaboration Rules, IQs, and Event Types before this e*Way can perform its intended functions.

For more information about any of these procedures, please see the online Help system.

For more information about configuring e*Ways or how to use the e*Way Editor, see the **Working with e*Ways** user guide.

3.2 **e*Way Configuration Parameters**

e*Way configuration parameters are set using the e*Way Editor.

To change e*Way configuration parameters:

- 1 In the Enterprise Manager's Component editor, select the e*Way you want to configure and display its properties.
- 2 Under **Configuration File**, click **New** to create a new file, **Find** to select an existing configuration file, or **Edit** to edit the currently selected file.
- 3 In the **Additional Command Line Arguments** box, type any additional command line arguments that the e*Way may require, taking care to insert them *at the end* of the existing command-line string. Be careful not to change any of the default arguments unless you have a specific need to do so.

For more information about how to use the e*Way Editor, see the e*Way Editor's online Help or the *Working with e*Ways* user's guide.

The e*Way's configuration parameters are organized into a single section: General Settings.

3.2.1. General Settings

The parameters in this section specify the name of the external client system and the IP port through which e*Gate and the client system communicates.

Request Reply IP Port

Description

Specifies the IP port through which e*Gate and the external system communicates.

Required Values

A valid TCP/IP port number between 1 and 65536. The default is **26051**. Normally, you only need to change the default number if the specified TCP/IP port is in use, or you have other requirements for a specific port number.

Push IP Port

*Note: This parameter is not used by the Remedy e*Way.*

Description

Specifies the IP port through which this e*Way allows an external system to connect and receive unsolicited (without submitting a request) Events.

Required Values

A valid TCP/IP port number between 0 and 65536. The default is **0**.

Additional Information

Any Event that this e*Way receives that has zero values for all fields in the 24 byte MUX header is sent to all callers of the WaitForUnsolicited. This parameter is optional. If set to zero, the e*Way will follow the Request/Reply scenario and not accept unsolicited Events.

Rollback if no Clients on Push Port

Description

Specifies whether the Event will continually roll back if there are no push clients connected.

Required Values

Yes or No.

Wait for IQ Ack

Description

Specifies whether the data must be committed to the IQ on every transaction before the send function returns to the client.

Required Values

Yes or No.

Note: Setting this parameter to YES significantly impacts performance. If normal Request/Reply type transactions are being Sent/Received, and the data can be recreated at the client, this parameter should not be set.

3.3 Configuring the Remedy EIE Application

This section describes how to configure the Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine for basic communication with the Remedy e*Way. For detailed configuration instructions, please see the *Remedy Enterprise Integration Engine Administrator's Guide*.

3.3.1. Setting up a Remedy EIE:VendorConfiguration Form

Use the following procedure:

1 Open the EIE:VendorConfiguration form in the Remedy EIE application.

2 Create the following rows:

Vendor Application	Param Name	Param Default Value
STC	SendToSTC	yes
STC	SocketConfig	localhost:8999
STC	Record Start Delim	Record
STC	Time Out In Seconds	500



Image: Second graph of the second g			
Matching EIE:VendorConfiguration			3 0:01
Vendor Application FlatFile FlatFile FlatFile STC			
			▼ ►
🗳 Modify EIE:VendorConfiguration 00	0000000000026		Save 🛛 🗸 🕨
Vendor Application Para STC Param Default Value Enc yes	am Name dToSTC crypted ′es © No		
Details <i>Frequent ID</i> [0000000000026 Submitter Deco [Demo [10/1] Last Modified By Mod [Demo [10/1]	<i>ate Date</i> 10/2000 1:27:01 PM		
1 Selected Nu	umber 4 of 6 Demo	rchen_dell750	

Note: All values are case sensitive.

3 In the EIE:DataExchange forms, within the Vendor Configuration tab, you must enter parameter values for "SendToSTC", "SocketConfig", "Record Start Delim", "Time Out In Seconds" information.

Modify EIE:DataExchange 000000000000000000000000000000000000
Back Define Data Exchange Data Exchange Name Vendor Application STCTestRead STC Direction Exchange Type Vendor Data into AR Scheduled Only
Define Data Exchange Vendor Application Active Asset Limit Data Exchange Name Vendor Application C Yes C No Image: Comparison of the set of t
Data Exchange Name Vendor Application Active Asset Limit STCTestRead STC Yes O No Image: Comparison of the set of the s
STCTestRead STC CYes No Image: Cyes Direction Exchange Type Update Type Vendor Data into AR Scheduled Only Always Create New
Direction Exchange Type Update Type Vendor Data into AR Scheduled Only Always Create New
Vendor Data into AR Scheduled Only Always Create New
Create Data Exchange
Data Mapping Schedule [Vendor Configuration] Debug AR Login Information
Enter Vendor-Specific Configurations
Param Name Param Value
SendToSTC no
Becord Start Delim Becord
Time Out In Seconds 500
Param Name Param Value
SendToSTC no no

Figure 4 Vendor-Specific Configurations

- If the exchange direction is "AR data into Vendor", then the "SendToSTC" parameter is set to "yes". If the exchange direction is "Vendor data into AR", then the "SendToSTC" parameter is set to "no". The "SendToSTC" vendor variable advises the e*Way of the direction of the data exchange. The current version of the EIE engine does not pass the "Direction" field in "EIE:DataExchange" form to the e*Way, this is a limitation within EIE not the e*Way.
- The "SocketConfig" parameter takes the form of "hostname:port". It will be used by the EIE adapter to establish communication with the Remedy e*Way. The hostname specifies the machine name or IP address where the e*Way operates. This machine corresponds to the "Request Reply IP Port" parameter within the e*Way Configuration.
- The "Record Start Delim" default value is "Record". This can be configured to some other value if desired. A single record that passes between the Remedy e*Way and the **stcadpr.dll** that resides on the Remedy Server takes the following format:

```
<Record>....</Record> for a single record or
```

```
<Record>.....</Record><Record>....</Record><Record>....</Record><Record>....</
```

- The "Time Out In Seconds" default value is 500 seconds. The adapter will wait the specified maximum number of seconds for a response from e*Gate. If the value is not defined, inside adapter, it is set to the default of 500 seconds.
- 4 The Data Keys tab in the EIE:DataMapping has two columns:
 - AR Key Fields

Vendor Key Fields

Only the Vendor Key Fields are passed to the Remedy Server via the **stcadpr.dll**. If the Vendor Key Field is defined as "stcCharacter", the value will appear in the stream as:

<stcCharacter>the keyvalue</stcCharacter>.

Figure 5 Data Keys tab in EIE:DataMapping

Image: Second Stress	
Modify EIE:DataMapping 00000000000000000 Back Data Mapping and AR System Form Used in Data Exchange Data Mapping Name AR System Form STCRead STCRead Main Data Kaus Field Manning Response Ruery Options	Save JV
Define Key Fields AR Key Field Enable Character Yes	
AR Form Fields and Rules Enable Character Yes Modify Add Delete	

5 In the Field Mapping tab of the EIE:DataMapping, enter the fields that are passed to the **stcadpr.dll**. For example, if the Vendor Data Fields are defined as "stcInteger", "stcDate", "stcReal" and "stcDecimal" the following fields will appear in the record stream:

<stcInteger>123</stcInteger><stcDate>Wednesday, February 03, 1999
02:04:22AM</stcDate><stcReal>1.2786556453e+12</stcReal><stcDecimal>345743.23</stcDecimal>

Image: Second state of the second s	jelp	× _ & ×
🖋 Modify EIE:DataMapping 00000	000000015	Save 🚺
Back Data Mapping ar	d AR System Form Used in Data Exchange	
STCRead	AH System Form STC:EIERead	
Main Data Keys Field Mapping Response	Query Options	-1
Define Data to Transfer		
AR Data Field Vendor Data Field Integer stolnteger	Enable Yes	
Date stcDate Real stcReal	Yes	
Decimal	Yes	
AR Form Fields and Rules	Vendor Fields and Rules Update History? Enable	
	Modify Add Delete	
Ready	Number 3 of 4 Demo rchen_dell750	

Figure 6 Field Mapping tab in EIE:DataMapping

• A complete record from the Remedy e*Way to the Server would look similar to the following:

```
<Record><stcCharacter>SeeBeyond</stcCharacter><stcDate>Wednesday,
February 03, 1999 02:04:22AM</stcDate><stcReal>1.2786556453e+12</
stcReal><stcDecimal>-345743.23</stcDecimal></Record>
```

• A complete record from the Server to the Remedy e*Way would look similar to the following:

```
<Record><TRANS>ARHLPDesk</TRANS><Category>Facilities</
Category><Description>I am having back pain and need to have my
office setup checked.</Description><Priority>Low</
Priority><Status>Closed</Status><Type>Ergonomics</
Type><ArItem>Assessment</ArItem><Summary>I need an ergonomic
assessment.</Summary><stcCaseID>HD00000000008</stcCaseID></
Record>.
```

The **stcadpr.dll** exports the data exchange between the tags <TRANS>..........</TRANS>.

Image: Second State	v <u>H</u> elp			× _#×
🖋 Modify EIE:DataMapping 000	000000000022			Save 🚺
Back Data Mapping Data Mapping Name ARToSTC Main Data Keys Field Mapping Respo	g and AR System Form AR System AR System HPD:Help onse Query Options	Used in Data Excha m Form Desk	inge	
Define Key Fields				
AR Key Held Ver	idor Key Held CaselD Vender Fie	IEnable Yes	Fnable	
AH Form Fields and Hules	Vendor He StcCaseID	y Add	Trable Yes Delete	
1 Selected	Number 4 of 4	Demo	rchen_dell750	

Figure 7 Data Keys in EIE:DataMapping for Case ID+

Remedy User - [EIE:DataMapping] File Edit View Tools Actions Window He	lp			
<u></u>				
🞸 Modify EIE:DataMapping 000000	000000022			Save Save
Back Data Mapping and	AR System Form U	sed in Data Exc	hange	
ARToSTC	AR System	Form esk	v	
Main Data Keys Field Mapping Response	Query Options			
Define Data to Transfer				
AR Data Field Vendor Data Field		Enable Histor	Enable	
Category Category		No	Yes	
Description Description		No	Yes	
Priority Priority Status Status		No	Yes Yes	
Tupe Tupe		No	Tes Yes	
ltem Adtem		No	Yes	
Summary Summary		No	Yes	
AR Form Fields and Rules	Vendor Fields	and Rules	Update I	History? Enable
CategoryRule	> Category	-	• No (Yes Yes 💌
		Modify	Add	Delete
1 Selected	Number 4 of 4	Demo	rchen dell750	

Figure 8 Field Mappings in EIE:DataMapping for Category

- If the direction of the data exchange is from AR to e*Gate, the Remedy e*Way will pass the data stream received to the backend system in e*Gate.
- If the direction of the exchange of data is from e*Gate to AR, AR will initiate the action by sending a request "Request Server Info". e*Gate will verify that the request made is "Request Server Info", trigger the information to be obtained from the backend system, and reply to the request. The Remedy e*Way provides the means to match the reply to the original request client. Within the **stcadpr.dll**, the thread that sends the "Request Server Info" blocks on read when waiting on the reply from the Remedy e*Way.
- To get a response for the data transfer, enter the appropriate values in the Response tab. If the data exchange is from e*Gate to AR, the response field will display the status of the AR update. A sample response set up looks like:

Remedy User - [ElE:OutoMapping] Ele Edit Yew [cois áctions Window Ele Edit Yew [cois áctions Window	Refo		
💋 Modify EIE:DataMapping 0000	0000000015		
Back Data M	apping and AR System For	m Used in Data Exchange	,
Data Mapping Name STCRead	AR Sy	stem Form ERcad	
Main Data Keys] Field Mapping	Response Ouery Options	1	
Define Response Data to Tra	ansfer		
AR Basp Field Function(status) Constant*RESP FROM AR* Function(timestemp() Request ID	Vendor Resp Field AR UPPATE STATUS RESP FROM_AR AR_UPDATE_DATE AR_REQUEST_ID	Enoble Ves Yes Yes Yes Yes	
AB Form Fields and Rules Function(status()	Uendor F AR_UPD Madiy	ields and Rules	Enable Yes 💌 Delate
Ready		Deno	Solutions4

Figure 9 Field Mappings - EIE DataMapping

• The response message from AR sent through the adapter will appear similar to the following:

This response is represented in an ETD as follows:



Figure 10 ETD Editor - ETD Response

- The response has 3 groups of data: key, valueToUpdate and responseValue according to the C++ class CBaseAdapter: UpdateRuleValues. The key group has all the values defined in EIE:DataMapping at the Data Keys tab. The valueToUpdate group and responseValue group contain the same set of data as defined in EIE:DataMapping at the Response tab.
- A dedicated Multiplexing e*Way for each data exchange is recommended. This simplifies the monk script logic when decoupling messages. If the number of available Multiplexing e*Ways is limited due to a limited number of available TCP/ IP ports, then the monk logic in the Collaboration rules must be configured to decouple the messages in such a way as to get two or more types of messages from the same Multiplexing e*Way.

Implementation

This chapter includes information pertinent to implementing the Remedy e*Way in a production environment as well as describing the sample schema included with the installation CD-ROM.

4.1 Installing the Remedy Sample Schema

The e*Gate Installation CD contains a sample scenario to demonstrate a simple schema using the Remedy e*Way. The sample schema can be installed on a local Registry Host for demonstration purposes.

4.1.1. Importing the Sample Schema

Once the Remedy EIE e*Way is installed, a new schema must be created. While it is possible to use the default schema for the sample implementation, it is recommended that you create a separate schema for testing purposes. After you install the Remedy EIE e*Way, do the following:

- 1 Start the e*Gate Enterprise Manager GUI.
- 2 When the Enterprise Manager prompts you to log in, select the host that you specified during installation, and enter your password.
- 3 You will then be prompted to select a schema. Click **New**.
- 4 Enter a name for the new Schema. In this case, enter **remedyMux**, or any appropriate name as desired.

The e*Gate Enterprise Manager opens to your new schema. You are now ready to begin creating the necessary components for this schema.

4.1.2. Running the Sample Schema

To run the sample schema, type the following at the command prompt:

stccb.exe -ln remedyMux_cb -rh localhost -rs remedyMUX
-un Administrator -up STC

Order of Application Startup and Shutdown

You should run the Remedy EIE as a Windows service set to manual start.

When running a Remedy e*Way scenario, start the e*Gate schema first, and then start the EIE service. When shutting down the scenario, shut down the EIE service before shutting down e*Gate.

4.2 About the Remedy Sample Schema

Figure 11, below depicts the sample schema included with the Remedy e*Way installation. This scenario receives an Event from Remedy and either constructs an appropriate reply to Remedy or writes the data out to a file.

Note: The actual e*Gate component names in the sample provided on the CD will be different from those shown in Figure 11. In the diagram, the names of the e*Gate components have been changed to reflect their functionality within the sample schema.



Figure 11 Remedy e*Way Sample Scenario

4.2.1. Sample Schema Data Flow Description

The following numbered items describe how data flows in the sample scenario. The numbers and letters are keyed to the circled characters in Figure 11.

remedyMuxEwayReqReply e*Way/remedyMuxRequestSplit collaboration ARUpdateRequest from <EXTERNAL> (Remedy EIE)

- 1 The remedyMuxRequestPushDataSplit collaboration rule checks the incoming message from Remedy EIE for the string "Request Server Info". The message sent from Remedy to this e*Way is either a request for data or status/response information.
- 2 If the string is present, the message is:
 - A Sent to the Request IQ to be processed by the BOB (8).
 - B Sent to the Push IQ to be picked up by the EaterResponse e*Way (9) and published to rmdyresp%d.dat.

BackEndRequestToBackEndReply BOB/BqckEndReqToReply collaboration - BackEndRequest from remedyMuxRequestSplit collaboration

The BOB checks for the "Request Server Info" string and picks up the file (specified in the collaboration rule - "C:\INDATA\testread1.txt" in this case). The file contains the formatted input data (XML-like format) to be sent to Remedy EIE.

3 The input is sent to the Reply IQ.

remedyMuxEwayReqReply e*Way/remedyMuxReply collaboration

- 4 BackEndReply to <EXTERNAL> (RemedyEIE) gets the input form the Reply IQ.
- 5 BackEndReply to <EXTERNAL> (RemedyEIE) sends the input to Remedy EIE. The data is processed by EIE and inserted/updated/etc. as required, depending on the EIE configuration.

remedyMuxEwayReceiveOnly/splitReceiveandallothers collaboration

- 6 This collaboration checks the incoming message from Remedy EIE for the string "Request Server Info". The message from Remedy to this e*Way is either a request for data or the data from Remedy EIE (like HelpDesk data).
- 7 If the string is present, the message is:
 - A Sent to the Request IQ to be processed by the BOB (8).
 - B Sent to the Push IQ to be picked up by the EaterNormalPushData eater (10) and published to remedyOut%d.dat.

Index

C

components participating host components **8**, Remedy server components Configuration Parameters Rollback if no client on push port Wait for IQ Ack Configuration parameters Push IP Port Request Reply IP Port configuring the participating host

E

EIE DataExchange 5, 6, 16, 17 DataMapping 5 EIE:DataExchange form 5 EIE:DataMapping form 5, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 EIE:Startup 5 EIE:VendorConfiguration form 15, 16 Enterprise Integration Engine (EIE) initialization 5 processing 5

F

files created by installation procedure **10** files/directories created by install **10**

initialization, EIE 5 installation 9 files/directories created 10

Р

participating host components **8**, **11** processing, EIE **5** Push IP Port **14**

R

registry editor 12 Remedy server components 8 Request Reply IP Port 14 Rollback if no client on push port 15

S

server components, Remedy 8 stc_common.dll 11 stc_ewipmpclnt.dll 11 stcadpr.dll 5, 6, 8, 17, 18, 19, 21 stcewipmp.def 11 stcewipmp.exe 11, 13 supported operating systems 8 system requirements 8 external 8

W

Wait for IQ Ack 15 Window NT/ 2000 registry editor 12 Windows NT/ 2000 install 10